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OF THE HILLABOFD BAR,
MEMBER OF THE AMERICAN HISTORICAL ASSDCIATION.
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PREFACE.

AMuch the larger part of this pamphlet was published
in a series of articles in the Charloite, N. C., Observer,
during the years 1901 and 1902, The value of the ma-
terial, loboriously collected from many scattered soulces
and pnt in consecntive order, justifies its preservation
in this more permanent form. )

The sourves from which data was obtuined were the
public records in the conrt honse here, the Colonial and
srate Records, Wheeler's looks, Caruther’s thres buoks,
Jonew’ Detence, and Melice's Life of 1redell.  The latier
work was found especially valouble.  The Colonial and
State Tecords, and the eounty records, were, however,
in all instances the basis of what is here wrillen, cs-
pecially in regurd fo dutes, By pursuing this conrse,
I have been enabled to correct many errors found in
some of these books,

Ag the pamphlet 1s published for pepular reading, T
have purposely refruined from hurdening it with notes
ang eitations of anthority. Enffice il to say, that 1 have
made no stalement herein that is nol, in my opinien,
gsuopporied by adequate, if not controlling, anthority.
Bome citations may be found in the appendices.

The subject, though cecasionally as broad as the State
itsell, many times, of course, nareows the seope of the
history und confines the writer fo topics that may appear
trivial. This comes from the nature of the town, itself
a country village, yet having residents who were taking
ao active, if not leading, part in the great affairs of
Btate und nation. The hiatory, then, of Colonial and
Revolutionary Hillsboro must form an appreciable part
of the history of Colonial and Bevolutionary North
Caroline. Being carefully prepared and written, I trust
the compleied work may prove of value to students, as
well as to readers, of Norvth Carelina history,

Hirsporo, N. O, March 19, 1008,
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CHAPTER L—1754-1770.

Travelers through those portlons of Orange County
wutered by the Haw River and its tributaries, New
Bope Creek and it tributaries, and Enc River and its
tributaries, have, Mrom Lowson's day to the present,
admired the fertility of the soil, the beauty of the
gcenery, und the magnificence of the forests. Ferhaps
there was no apot along or near any of these rivers so
pleasantly or so beautifully situsted as that whereon
‘Willium Churton, one of Karl Granville’s surveyors,
located and laid off a fown In 1754. He laid off this
town on four handred acres of land on the north bank
¢f the river Eoo, some fime between June T and Sep-
tember 1 of that year. It was first called Orenge, but
its name was changed (o Corbinton in a very short time,
for Francis Corbin, one of Harl Granville's agents. No-
vember 20, 1758, it wus incorporated under the name of
{Childshurg for the then Attorney-General, By thiz act
only 200 acres, the castern half of the town, could be sold
and built upon. The remsinder was to be common.
The town itself ley in a valley, surrounded by high hiils,
and ite southern boundary extended along the HEno
River. 'This river had & tortuous course, and its pellu-
¢id waters, unchecked by dames, and uncontaminated by
sewage of town and cotton mill, flowed rapidly beneath
the overhanging trees, then us beantiful s stream as
could be found in the Btaie, and even now, with its
banks denmded of forest growth along much of its
<course, it has stretches that are surpassingly beautiful,
overhung as they are by bluffs on the south side, densely
covered by rlododendron and ivy, whese pink or white
flowers and dark green leaves are, in season, mirrored



[ Hillshoro—Colonial and Revolutionary.

in the quieter pools of the river heneath, and on the
north by thick folinged beughs of birch or beech or oak.
Then, too, the Occoneechee mountains extended heyond
the western limits of the tewn, crowned with the glories
of an untouched forest, and not, a8 now, with a degen-
erate and dwindling secondary growth; not, as now,
searred and marred by modern commercial energy that
has invaded their sides and is tearing and rending them
1o extract from their bowels that which shall make one
of its own agencies safe and secure, Then, too, the un-
broken forest to whese magnificence the fow relies of it
that remain testify, stretched away on every side, over
hill and dale, broken only here and there along the
southern and eastern irails, or along the few cross-
countty paths, by dettlements which the adventurons
white man had made.

The most prowminent of the original residents of the
town were Jumes Watson, William Reed, Willinm Nunn
and William Chaorton. James Watson was the second
Clerk of the Connty Court, 17551763, Richard Caswell
being thoe firat, 1762-1765, and ke wag, 1n 1772, appeinied
Regiater of the connty. Willinm Reed came from Penn-
sylvania, and was Bheriff 1758, 1760, 171 and 1762.
William Nuno was Sherifil 1765, William Churton, a
surveyor of Lord Granville, was Register of the county
1752-1762, and gave his own name to one of the principal
gireets of the town. The first lawyer to locate in the
place was Duanicl Weldon. He came shout 1764, re-
mained six years, and then disappeared from the public
records. The County Court was first Joeaied here in
1764, and the Colonial Assembly made {hiz location
permanent in November, 1768. There were no Soperior
Clomrts held in Willshoro unti! March, 1768, thal plaece
heing first in the Hulifux and Iater in the Balisbury Ths-
trict.

To this town, in 17613, came Edmund Fanning, Inw-
yer, scholar, gentleman, and adventurer, bhut withal,
overhearing, nnscrupnlons and a libertine.

In Mareh, 1763, he qualified as Register of the connty,
and thereatter purchased several town Tota, built himself
a fine mansiom on the site of the Masonic Lodge, and
proceeded to make himeelf the unconscions proveker, if
not maker, of much North Carolina history.
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About the game time came Francis Nash, youngest
son of & substantial Virginia planter, Col. John Nash,
and qualified as County Court Clerk, March, 1763. He
wag another lawyer and gentieman advenfurer, of hand-
some presence and fine address, afterwards one of Wash-
ington’s most truated brigadiers, killed too early in the
war for him to have made a national reputation, though
he has given his name to & county in this Btate, aud the
capital of an adjoining one.

Abner Nash, too, an older hrother, afterwards a }ead
ing patriot, spent much of his time here at this period,
practised in the courts and cogaged in mercantile ven-
tures,  (lement Reed, likewise a Virginia lawyer, prae-
tised in the conrta for two or three years, until 1763 or
1764, “In 1764, mays William Few, Autobiography
(Magazine of American History, November, 1881)
“Hillshore was the metropalis of the county, where the
epuris were held and all public busineas wag done, It
was a small village, which contained thirty or forty in-
Lhabitants, with two or three small stores and two or
three taverns, bof it was an improving village. Several
Heoteh merchants were soon after induced to establish
stores that contained a good assortment of Huropean
merchandise, and 4 chureh, court houde and juil were
built.”

‘Wm. Pew, 8r., father of the autobiographer and of
James Few, the Regulator, had moved his family o
what is now the Kirkland plaee, in 1763, and there, a
mile from town, was keeping a tavern, and lower down
the Eno River running a mill,  John Dowell was one of
the smalter merchantr alluded to by Wm, Few. He, too
kept a tuvern, but in the town.

OFf the Beorel werchants, William Johnston was
cagily chief. He was the only son and heir of Robt.
Johnston of Hartwonod, LoeLmaben Parish, Annandale
Shire, Scotlacnd, and il, near relative of (xm’ inbriel
Johngton, and the North Carolina statesman. HBamuel
Johnston, and was himself afterwards o prominent pa-
iriot. He came to Hillshoro with abundant means late
in 1767 or earty 1768, and formed a co-partoership with
James Thackston. The latter first appeared here about
the time that Johnston came, and was afterwards a soe-



